
Environment Scrutiny Commission

Wednesday 20 January 2021
6.30 pm
Zoom

Membership Reserves

Councillor Jason Ochere (Chair)
Councillor Graham Neale (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Margy Newens
Councillor Adele Morris
Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Jeremy Leach

Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor Sirajul Islam
Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Jack Buck

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports 
on this agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to 
look after your children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form 
at the meeting.
Access The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact Julie Timbrell  on 020 7525 0514   or email:  julie.timbrell@southwark.gov.uk 

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 12 January 2021

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Environment Scrutiny Commission
Wednesday 20 January 2021

6.30 pm
Zoom

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to the 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATION

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. MINUTES

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 4 
November 2020,to follow. 



Item No. Title Page No.

5. REVIEW: PLANNING AND THE ENVIRONMENT 1 - 31

The following will attend to support the Commission’s review into Planning 
and the Environment: 

 Planning Officers - a report is to follow 

 Climate Change Committee (CCC) -  an independent, statutory 
body established under the Climate Change Act 2008 (tbc) 

 Climate Framework with Ann Griffin, a member of Southwark’s 
Design Review Panel, Director of  Architects Collaborative and 
Mina Hasman , Skidmore, Owings & Merrill, who is group lead for 
the Cross-Industry
Action Group, who  instigated the Climate Framework. Mina is  
also on the board of UK Green Building Council. The Climate 
Framework is attached. 

 Southwark Planning Network, with Paula Orr and Richard Lee. 

6. INTERVIEW WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CLIMATE 
EMERGENCY, PLANNING & TRANSPORT

32

Cllr Johnson Situ, Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency, Planning & 
Transport, will be interviewed on his portfolio, attached. 

7. CLIMATE EMERGENCY STRATEGY AND WORK PROGRAMME - 
UPDATE

A report is to follow. 

8. TRACKING ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY  COMMISSION REVIEW 
RECOMMENDATIONS

A report tracking previous Environment Scrutiny Commission review 
recommendations and cabinet responses from the following reports is to 
follow:

• Community Energy
• Air Quality
• First and second Climate Emergency strategy reports 

9. WORK PROGRAMME

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEM AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS



Item No. Title Page No.

DISCUSSION OF ANY CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START 
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  12 January 2021 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”



1

Climate 
Framework

A cross-industry 
action group initiative

1
Agenda Item 5



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

2

About the Cross-Industry 
Action Group

The Cross-Industry Action Group comprises a group of volunteers representing 
various professional institutes, and member organisations who have come 
together with a vision to unite the industry and academia, in the effort to upskill 
and build our collective capacity for climate action.

“It is time to unite 
the industry and 
academia in the 
fight against 
climate change.”  
Mina

“Much needed effort 
that reflects the 
scale and urgency 
of the climate crisis.”  
Alex T.

“A step towards 
joined-up thinking, 
urgently required to 
tackle the ecological 
and carbon impacts 
of our sector.” 
Sarah B.

“An ambitious and 
essential initiative 
with a framework 
that is a cross-
industry commons, 
not owned by any 
one institution.” 
Alex W.

“This sustainable 
built environment 
roadmap is essential 
for everyone 
in our industry.” 
Sarah W.

“I support the 
acceleration of 
concerted efforts 
to upskill & to act 
ambitiously now.”  
Sui-Te

“We must work 
together and 
with urgency to 
address the built 
environment’s 
role in the climate 
emergency.”  
Sam

“It’s been great to 
collectively build 
this and I’m really 
looking forward to 
the impact it will 
have on industry 
and students.”  
Julie

“A timely and 
welcomed resource 
for upskilling of both 
current and aspiring 
practitioners in the 
built environment.”  
Boris

“We must act 
now and act 
collaboratively 
to avert the 
climate crisis.”  
Ann

“Great to support 
a collaborative 
approach to 
accelerate 
climate action.”  
Anna

“Let’s look beyond 
climate declarations, 
to design a net zero 
carbon future.”  
Clare

“It provides the base 
level of sustainability 
knowledge for the 
entire industry.”  
Joe

“A comprehensive 
framework for steering 
sustainability in the 
built environment.”                     
Mirko

2



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

3

Our Vision + Mission

The urgent and interconnected challenges 
of climate change, ecological degradation, 
natural disasters, population growth, 
and rapid urbanisation—now with the 
added layer of a global pandemic—demand 
a realignment of our focus and priorities 
as built environment professionals.

This reality also demands that we reassess our industry’s capacity 
to respond effectively to these challenges—which means we 
need to reevaluate the knowledge and skills that are needed, both 
globally and locally. In this era of rapid change and multi-layered 
challenges—which sometimes require us to address competing 
priorities—we must find multi-faceted and holistic responses that 
are delivered fast and at scale.

It has become clear that a single entity of any kind—be it a professional 
institute or an academic institution, a membership organisation, or 
a private practice—is simply not going to be enough to transform the 
entire industry globally, and accelerate the transition to a resilient and 
sustainable future. Collaborative action is essential to consistently 
provide solutions that are based on know-hows which continually 
shape and inform the knowledge delivered—whether in academia or 
in practice. Such knowledge must be nurtured with insights gained 
from the collective and collaborative experiences of applying that 
knowledge in practice.

This is the vision of the Climate Framework initiative—to unite the 
industry and academia in the effort to upskill and build our collective 
capacity for climate action. Our mission is to cross-pollinate 
experiences and expertise across the industry, embracing all disciplines, 
and creating a shared curriculum framework as well as a platform for 
holistic climate knowledge. In this united and coordinated effort, our 
aim is to break down silos and establish common ground, define a 
common language, and identify the holistic knowledge and skills every 
built environment professional must be equipped with in order to 
deliver truly sustainable built environments today and in the future. 

3



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

4

Supporting  
Organisations

The extensive support of the many professional institutes, membership 
organisations and academic institutions indicate the need and desire for 
greater collective action across the industry and academia to mitigate 
adverse impacts of climate change and ecological degradation.

4



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

5

Contents 

About the Cross-Industry Action Group 2

Our Vision + Mission 3

Supporting Organisations 4

Executive Summary 6

Introduction 7

Context 8
The industry + academia are saying...

The Framework 9
Holistic Approach 
Proposed Structure

Learners’ Journey 11
Target Audience
Tiered Structure

Consultation 12
Consultation Process
Key Findings / Insights

Detailed Framework Structure 14

Resources 18
Resource Selection + Categorization 
Disclaimer

Endorsement + Support 20
Industry
Academia

5



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

6

Executive Summary

This document presents a new, transdisciplinary, 
and holistic framework for the knowledge base 
that every current and future built environment 
professional will need to be equipped with in 
order to halt climate change and mitigate its 
adverse impacts.

A group of leading industry professionals—called the Cross-Industry Action 
Group - who are representing different disciplines and organisations, have 
come together with the mission to unite the industry and academia in upskilling 
and building collective capacity for climate action.                                              

The first output of the Group—the Climate Framework—is presented in detail 
throughout this document.

Significant amount of input has been provided by academia and industry over 
a three-month consultation, which has helped the Cross-Industry Action Group 
to develop this Framework in great consensus. 

It is envisaged that the Framework can be taken as the base set of topics 
by any organisation, professional institute, or academic institution to use, 
customise, and to build appropriately detailed content—in line with their 
discipline, area of focus, and contextual priorities. 

6



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

7

Introduction

In an era of rapid change and upheaval, 
with climate change ever-present as 
“the most systemic threat to humankind” 1, 
we rely on catalysing collective action to 
minimise adverse and permanent impacts 
of ecological breakdown. To achieve this, 
climate scientists urge us to take radical 
action to prevent global warming exceeding 
1.5°C above pre-industrial levels by the end 
of this century.

Limiting global warming to 1.5°C will be challenging—it will require rapid 
and far-reaching transitions at an unprecedented rate and scale—and 
it will rely on the global economy reaching net zero carbon by 2050 
(Global Warming of 1.5°C, IPCC, 2018); with the built environment 
sector needing to transition to net zero carbon in 2030. 

Developed jointly by a group of leading cross-industry professionals, 
the Climate Framework aims to create a comprehensive knowledge 
base that will be equally relevant for those in academia and those 
in practice, in order to equip current and future generations of 
professionals with the competence and confidence required to 
deliver on the 1.5°C ambition.

1  António Guterres, Secretary-General of the United Nations, 2018

7

https://www.ipcc.ch/sr15/


Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

8

“Everyone talks about 
net zero carbon 
buildings, but I really 
don’t know how can 
I design a building to 
be net zero.”

“Wow! I didn’t realise 
what impact my design 
decisions have on the 
natural environment 
and people.”

“I now understand how 
all these ‘sustainability’ 
concepts I’ve heard 
before relate to each 
other. This will help my 
research at school.”

“I learned about passive 
design strategies at 
school, but I don’t know 
how to apply them in 
practice.”

“I no longer need to 
endlessly search online 
which industry guidelines  
I should focus on—they 
are all in one place now.”

“I want to become 
an expert on 
health-focused 
built environments.           
Where do I start?”

“I wish we collaborated 
with industry experts to 
bring insights of real-life 
project examples into 
our academic courses.”

“I am developing a new 
course. Which topics 
should I focus on to 
help students be better 
prepared for the future?”

“I heard London is 
transitioning to circular 
economy. How will this 
impact building design 
and construction?”

“Our sustainability 
consultants talk about 
carbon factors. I now 
understand what they 
exactly refer to.”

“I want my students to 
focus on nature-based 
solutions. Which are the 
best resources I can 
direct them to?”

“I now feel confident to 
advise others on climate 
adaptation strategies 
especially in rapidly 
growing cities.”

Context

The industry + academia are saying...

8



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

9

The Framework

Holistic Approach

Underpinned by the vision and the mission of the universally-
embraced UN Agenda 2030 and the 17 Sustainable Development 
Goals, the Climate Framework is organised around six overarching 
themes, together with a series of ‘common threads’ that are 
shared by all. The six themes represent those areas, which can 
be influenced most directly by the built environment.

The Framework recognises the need to consider the key themes 
in a holistic manner in order to avoid unintended consequences. 
It also recognizes the need to address challenges both locally 
and globally, and for them to be contextualised according to 
the particular social, economic and environmental context.

Common Threads

9



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

10

The Framework

Proposed Structure

The six main themes of the Framework are 
defined as ‘outcomes’; each of which is then 
further defined consistently, by a series of 
five sub-themes. The sub-themes reflect the 
breath of the richness and depth of different 
concepts each overarching theme embraces 
and represents.

Biophilia + Sense                           
User Experience 
Health + Wellbeing                                    
Communities                                           
Social Value                                             

Resource Efficiency             
Flexibility + Adaptability                          
Impacts                              
Waste as a Resource                                 
Sourcing

Passive Design                     
Active Design + Systems                       
Whole Life Carbon                               
Offsetting                                         
Iterative Design

Biodiversity                             
Nature-Based Solutions                
Land Use                                    
Bio-Regional Urbanism                    
Food Production

Water Cycle                          
Water Recycling + Reuse                       
Water Harvesting                                     
Water Pollution                                      
Climate Change  Impacts

Site Location                              
Walkability                                    
Infrastructure + Planning                      
Low Carbon Transport                      
Future Transport

(Note: For detailed Framework structure, please see Appendix, “Detailed Framework Structure”). 

10



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

11

Learners’ Journey

Target Audience

The holistic and interdisciplinary 
development of the Framework and its 
all-encompassing structure aim to create 
the knowledge base from which to upskill 
the entire built environment sector. 

Considering this, the target audience of the Framework is built 
environment professionals of today and the future, as well as tutors, 
who are teaching the next generation professionals. It is envisaged 
that the Framework can be taken as the base set of topics by any 
organisation, institute or institution to use, amend according to their 
members’ and/or schools’ needs, and to build appropriately detailed 
content - in line with their discipline, area of focus and expertise.  

Tiered Structure

Recognising that varying degrees of knowledge and skills exist across 
the sector, the Framework adopts a three-tier structure that will 
enable content creators to identify specific learning outcomes and 
define the overall learner’s journey—consistent with the objective of 
upskilling and building capacity. The aim of each tier is as follows:

Tier 1

To raise awareness, develop basic knowledge and understanding

Tier 2

To gain industry-specific knowledge and skills together with the ability 
to apply this in practice/school projects

Tier 3

To develop a well-rounded knowledge base + build expertise together 
with the ability to analyse, evaluate and use the knowledge gained in 
a creative manner

11



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

12

Consultation

Consultation Process

A three-month, online consultation was 
undertaken to help shape and refine the 
Framework’s structure—embedding input 
from as many disciplines as possible, 
throughout the sector.  This consultation 
reached over 230 individuals across the 
international buildings and construction 
industry, as well as academia.

Key Findings / Insights

The responses received from both industry and academia have 
helped the Cross-Industry Action Group to develop the structure 
of the Framework in an iterative manner, and have identified the 
following needs: 

1. Consistency: The need to consistently disseminate knowledge 
and share experiences, as well as insights between industry 
and academia

2. Collaboration: A need for greater collaboration among all 
stakeholders across the sector

3. Comprehensiveness: The need for an integrated, inclusive 
and multidisciplinary approach

12



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

13

Appendices
13



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

14

Detailed Framework  
Structure

The proposed Climate Framework consists 
of an introductory section that provides the 
essential background knowledge as it relates 
to climate change within the global and the built 
environment context, followed by the ‘outcomes’ 
section, which specifically focuses on six 
overarching themes. These themes represent 
concepts that built environment professionals 
must holistically consider in order to halt climate 
change, and mitigate its impacts.

14



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

15

Context

1 Introduction [to the Climate Framework]
Purpose
Audience/Reader 
Learning Objectives/Outcomes/Standards  
[Framework] Structure 
Terminology  

2 Global Context and Fundamentals
Climate Fundamentals 

 — Climate Change 
 — Resource Use  
 — Systems Thinking 

International Policy, Legislation, Agreements and Plans for Action
Financial Risks & Opportunities and Net Zero Economy

3 Built Environment Context
Environmental Impacts of the Built Environment 
Ethics and Value of Sustainability  
Sustainable Urbanism, Architecture and Engineering
Built Environment Policy, Legislation, Regulations, Commitments, Benchmarks 
and Construction Industry Guidance
Construction and Real Estate Industry

4 Common Threads
Retrofit (Adaptation and Reuse) 
Climate Justice, Equitable and Inclusive Design
Designing for Performance, Feedback and Closing the (Performance) Gap
Planning for (Climate) Extremes, Disaster Risk, Resilience/Robustness, 
Redundancy and Adaptation
Building Safety
Process, Investment and Procurement
Stakeholder Engagement
Research, Innovation and Partnerships

15



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

16

Outcomes

1 Human Factors
Introduction and Core Principles
Biophilic and Sensory Design
User Experience Design and Occupancy Behavior/Control
Health, Wellbeing and Comfort
Communities, Interconnectivity and Inclusion
Social Value
Resources (Tools and Guides)
Case Studies

2 Circular Economy
Introduction and Core Principles
Resource Efficiency and Geographic Implications
Designing for Change (Flexibility and Adaptability), Redundancy and 
Regeneration
Environmental and Health Impacts of Materials and Waste
Waste as a Resource
Responsible and Ethical Sourcing
Resources (Calculations, Tools, Databases and Guides)
Case Studies

3 Energy and Carbon
Introduction and Core Principles
Passive Design
Active Design: Environmental Systems and Technologies
Whole Life Carbon Impacts (for Retrofit and New Build)
Offsetting
Operational Energy Modelling, Embodied Carbon Assessment and Iterative 
Design Process
Resources (Methodologies, Tools, Databases and Guides)
Case Studies

4 Ecology and Biodiversity
Introduction and Core Principles
Biodiversity and Net Gain
Nature-based Solutions
Land Use and Building Density
Bio-regional Urbanism and Design
Urban Farming and Sustainable Food Production
Resources (Tools and Guides)
Case Studies

16



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

17

5 Water
Introduction and Core Principles
Water Cycle, Demand, Supply, Reduction and Management
Water Recycle and Reuse
Rainwater Harvesting, Stormwater Management and Sustainable Urban Drainage
Water Pollution in (Natural) Aquatic Habitats
Climate Change Impacts (Floods, Droughts, Water Quality)
Resources (Calculators, Tools and Guides)
Case Studies

6 Connectivity and Transport
Introduction and Core Principles
Site Location
Compact Development and Walkability
Regional & Local Infrastructure and Planning
Low Carbon Transport and Multimodal Transportation Networks  
Planning for Future of Transportation
Resources (Calculators, Tools and Guides)

Case Studies

7 Collated Resources
Key Definitions and Glossary
Overview

 — Metrics and Methodologies
 — Tools, Calculators, Databases, (Product/Material) Declarations, Certifications and Guides
 — Case Studies

Takeaway Actions
Further Reading
References / Bibliography

17



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

18

Resources

Resource Selection + Categorization

A select sample of resources have been reviewed and 
gathered on the Climate Framework’s website  
www.climateframework.com. These resources link to existing 
content developed by expert individuals and organisations across 
the international buildings and construction industry, as well as 
academics, governmental and non-governmental bodies. 

All the resources included on the Climate Framework’s website 
have been categorized according to their length and depth/detailing 
of content as per the following categories, which are represented 
with icons:

Time to read

Short (≤1 hour)

Medium (1-5 hours)  

Long (≥5 hours)   

Level of difficulty

Basic (tier 1)

Intermediate (tier 2)  

Advanced (tier 3)   

18

http://www.climateframework.com


Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

19

Resources

Disclaimer

The Cross-Industry Action Group has endeavoured to fully recognise the 
originators of the content and their material to which the links are provided.  
The shared, online resources are free for use, and intended for educational 
purposes only.  Direct links to PDF documents have been avoided, thus 
preventing any issues that may arise in relation to ‘deep-linking’ or  
bandwidth-theft. Maximum care has been given to the referencing of not 
only published material, but also pictures, quotes, videos, etc.—with a full 
reference list that will eventually be published on the Climate Framework’s 
website, acknowledging where and who sources have come from. 

To the best of our knowledge, the Cross-Industry Action Group has safeguarded 
against plagiarising or infringement of copyrights, but should anyone find any 
issues, we would kindly ask you to report them to us, so that we can make 
immediate corrections. 

The Cross-Industry Action Group cannot guarantee that the third-party 
content is suitable for your purposes, accurate, complete or up-to-date.  
Hence, the Climate Framework and its authors cannot be held liable for any 
issues arising in contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, and will 
not be liable to you for any direct, indirect or consequential loss or damage, 
arising in connection with your use of, or reliance on, the select resources 
included within this document and on the Climate Framework’s website at  
www.climateframework.com.

We would like to take this opportunity to also clarify that the list of 
resources provided is at its first phase of development. As such, the list 
is not exhaustive, nor it claims to capture all of the resources on any given 
topic.  The Cross-Industry Action Group is therefore inviting authors, PSRB’s, 
industry and academia to join our community, get in touch, and share any 
additional resources with us that they would recommend to include on 
the Climate Framework’s website. These resources will be added to the 
online library, subject to the review panel’s recommendation. In this manner, 
the Cross-Industry Action Group can ensure that the content of this online 
resources’ library is constantly expanded and updated, making it fit for its 
purpose to the benefit of all.

19

http://www.climateframework.com


Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

20

Endorsement + Support

Industry

“The Construction Industry Council is delighted to support the Climate Framework. The 
Framework will equip built environment professionals with effective knowledge and skills to 
accelerate the transition to net zero carbon built environments. It fits perfectly with the work 
being done by the education workstream within our Climate Change Committee as it seeks 
a wide-ranging collective CPD programme for the industry.”

Stephen Hodder, CIC Chairman & Chair of the CIC Climate Change Committee

“The Climate Framework is the culmination of one of the most profound cross sector 
collaborations within the UK construction Industry in recent times. The aim of this framework 
came out of early workshops within the RIBA Sustainable Futures Group to create a common 
understanding of the core concepts and strategies required to address the climate and 
bio-diversity, and to deliver a regenerative and sustainable future for the planet. The working 
group expanded to encompass sustainable action groups from other sectors, culminating in its 
endorsement by the Construction Industry Council which represents all the UK construction 
industry professional bodies. I can’t express how important this framework is to upskilling the 
current and future generations of the construction industry. Now the framework is defined, 
the next goal is to create the crowd-sourced content within each of the sections as fast as 
possible during 2021. On behalf of the RIBA Sustainable Futures Group, I thank Mina and the 
Cross-Industry Action Group for Education for a fantastic piece of collaborative work.”

Gary Clark, Chair, RIBA Sustainable Futures Group

“Construction faces major challenges and must change. Building safely in our rapidly changing 
climate demands a change of culture and that extends to the way we educate and train 
our people. We need new skills for safe, low carbon construction using digital tools and 
increasingly building off site. The Climate Framework is an essential foundation, setting 
out how we teach the knowledge and skills for a low carbon sector equipped to deliver 
net zero carbon by 2050.”

Hywel Davies, Technical Director, CIBSE

“Responding to the challenges of climate change by necessity has to be a collaborative 
effort undertaken with a great deal of urgency. The launch of the Climate Framework will 
be of great benefit to those working at the interface of industry and academia and the 
challenges they face in formulating the necessary holistic curricula for our future young 
professionals—whatever their discipline.”

Martin Powell, Chief Executive, The Institution of Structural Engineers

20



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

21

“Climate change is one of the defining challenges of our time, and one which architects 
have a significant role in addressing. It is vital that architects have access to the best shared 
knowledge available so that they are able to make informed decisions and advocate for 
sustainable design solutions. I am delighted to see the content of the Climate Framework 
Structure, which will be an invaluable learning resource for architects looking to increase 
their knowledge on sustainable practice.”

Simon Howard, Director of Regulation, ARB

“We all, individually and professionally, have a role to play in addressing the climate crisis. 
By equipping future generations with the right skills, we can create sustainable low-carbon 
places, which are resilient to the risks of a changing climate, including flood and urban heat. 
The Landscape Institute is mandating new skills and standards of its members, and we are 
committed to working across disciplines to collectively build the skills needed to fight this 
crisis. The Climate Framework can be an excellent contribution to this agenda.”

Daniel Cook, Chief Executive, Landscape Institute

“We all urgently need to learn how to deliver a net-zero carbon emission built environment, 
something that can only happen if the many disciplines in the sector work together. A joint 
curriculum, shared across the industry, is an essential component in achieving this, so 
many thanks are due to the Cross Industry Action Group for developing this very necessary 
learning framework.”

The Edge

“The real estate industry is committed to decarbonising its activities and to addressing 
the numerous challenges of climate change. For the industry to be truly sustainable we 
will need to be the facilitators of a change in consumer behaviour, implement solutions 
across sectors, across activities, and through collaboration across disciplines. Any resource 
that provides a framework for this action will be well received. We are proud to support 
the Climate Framework as an important knowledge resource that will help take the built 
environment profession and academia in a common direction.” 

 Melanie Leech, Chief Executive, British Property Federation

“The Climate Framework is a much needed initiative to help increase the industry’s knowledge 
base and ensure a consistent approach to learning and development. This comprehensive 
resource will provide clarity in many areas relevant to both sustainability professionals and 
non-specialists alike. It will put us in a much better position to tackle the challenge ahead 
to decarbonise the built environment by 2030.”

Richard Quartermaine, Chair, Sustainability Committee, British Property Federation

21



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

22

“As CAT has taught for many years in our postgraduate architecture and building courses, 
as we as through our practical hand-on short courses, sustainability and concern about 
a project’s environmental impact can no longer afford to be optional extras but must be 
at the heart of the project life cycle, from concept design to finished building and beyond. 
We welcome the Climate Framework’s initiative to ensure that these concepts form 
a fundamental part of the education of every built environment professional”.

Peter Tyldesley, Chief Executive Officer, Centre for Alternative Technology

“The Alliance for Sustainable Building Products’ mission is to accelerate the transformation to 
a healthy, low carbon built environment by championing the use of demonstrably sustainable 
building products.  As such, we recognise the immense value that the Climate Framework will 
bring to achieving this through upskilling current and future built environment professionals, 
and building capacity across the sector. The ASBP are happy to support the initiative”. 

Jane Anderson, Board Member, The Alliance for Sustainable Building Products

“As CAT has taught for many years in our postgraduate architecture and building courses, 
as we as through our practical hand-on short courses, sustainability and concern about 
a project’s environmental impact can no longer afford to be optional extras but must be 
at the heart of the project life cycle, from concept design to finished building and beyond. 
We welcome the Climate Framework’s initiative to ensure that these concepts form 
a fundamental part of the education of every built environment professional.”

Peter Tyldesley, Chief Executive Officer, Centre for Alternative Technology

“World Green Building Council has set ambitious and unprecedented goals for the building and 
construction sector to ensure we achieve a net zero, healthy and resilient built environment. 
For this ambition to be converted into action, we must urgently mobilise our entire industry 
towards greater sustainability. This includes the crucial upskilling and education of current 
and future professionals to unlock the very best approaches to sustainable development.           
We welcome this important initiative and look forward to supporting its implementation.” 

Cristina Gamboa, CEO, World Green Building Council

“UKGBC fully supports the idea of a Climate Framework which provides common ground for 
holistic, cross-disciplinary action and enhances sustainability awareness, and knowledge 
and upskilling of Built Environment professionals.”

Julie Hirigoyen, Chief Executive, UK Green Building Council

“We live in a new reality. Climate change and ecological collapse threaten the survival of billions 
of people in decades and within the lifetime of people alive today.  This generation and next 
need to think differently. The Climate Framework will set students and industry on the right 
path with a sense of urgency which should not scare us, but inspire us.”

Pooran Desai, CEO, OnePlanet Living

22



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

23

“The CAA’s recent ‘Survey of the Built Environment Professions in the Commonwealth’ 
identified a critical shortage of built environment professions in many of the Commonwealth 
countries which are urbanising most rapidly and are among the most vulnerable to climate 
change impacts, together with a corresponding lack of educational capacity and a weakness 
in built environment policy. The Climate Framework will make an important contribution in 
the context of capacity development, and will help promote climate literacy among students 
and practitioners alike.” 

Peter Oborn, Vice President, Commonwealth Association of Architects

“I welcome the Climate Framework, which recognises the need for industry and academia to 
share a common sector-wide framework that describes the knowledge and skills required 
to deliver a sustainable built environment.”  

Dr Judit Kimpian, Chair, Sustainability Group at Architects’ Council of Europe

“We have a sustainability skills emergency in the real estate sector. If we are to deliver on net 
zero ambitions across the whole industry, we must ensure that responses to climate change 
are embedded in real estate education, professional training and competencies. The diverse 
issues and interventions that are required necessitate sector wide engagement and 
collaboration, which is why the BBP is delighted to support this Climate Framework.”

Sarah Ratcliffe, CEO, Better Buildings Partnership (BBP)

“Architects Declare enthusiastically endorses the Climate Framework. This is another significant 
piece of the collective jigsaw being created by the climate movement within the construction 
industry to accelerate  our transition to net zero. In creating that golden thread of knowledge 
linking industry to academia it provides the essential framework  on which we can all build 
a transformed built environment.”

Julia Barfield, Architects Declare

“UK Structural Engineers Declares welcomes and supports this initiative that seeking to 
raise the level of knowledge and understanding at all stages of learning. Our declaration 
is based on the need for trans-disciplinary collaboration and commitment to change. 
Shared understanding is fundamental to being able to achieve our shared vision.“

Dr Mike Cook, UK Engineers Declare & UK Structural Engineers Declare

“The biggest single barrier to achieving a zero carbon built environment is a lack of knowledge 
across the industry. This vital initiative by the Cross Industry Action Group for Education is 
therefore crucial to removing this barrier and contributing to a zero carbon economy.”

Simon Sturgis, Chair, Whole Life Carbon Network

23

https://commonwealthsustainablecities.org/survey/


Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

24

“The Alliance for Sustainable Building Products’ mission is to accelerate the transformation to 
a healthy, low carbon built environment by championing the use of demonstrably sustainable 
building products.  As such, we recognise the immense value that the Climate Framework will 
bring to achieving this through upskilling current and future built environment professionals, 
and building capacity across the sector. The ASBP are happy to support the initiative.”

Jane Anderson, Board Member, The Alliance for Sustainable Building Products

“ACAN calls for a complete remodelling of our professional culture and the manner in which 
we produce, operate and renew our built environment. We must work together with a clear 
understanding of all the issues that have pushed us into a global climate emergency. The 
Climate Framework is a comprehensive and confident step towards equipping our industry 
for the future.” 

Architects Climate Action Network (ACAN)

“The health of our planet is inextricably linked to both human health and the strength of our 
socioeconomic institutions. It’s critical that we put forward an integrated approach to translate 
the research behind how buildings impact planetary and human health into practice, while 
working to advance the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).”

Jason Hartke, Executive Vice President, External Affairs, International WELL Building Institute

“The Climate Framework provides a comprehensive, holistic outline built environment 
professionals and academia must understand and implement in order to accelerate actions 
towards a zero carbon built environment by 2030 and meet the Paris Agreement 1.5ºC Targets. 
By utilizing this framework, both the profession and professional design schools will be well 
poised to provide the leadership needed to address what we deem to be this century’s 
greatest challenge – the preservation of a habitable planet.” 

Ed Mazria, CEO, Architecture 2030

24



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

25

Academia

“This cross industry Climate Framework is a hugely exciting and a major step forward in 
providing a truly comprehensive and inclusive knowledge resource to enable built environment 
professionals and academics to rapidly address the climate emergency we all face. This 
initiative is exemplary in demonstrating the need for a transdisciplinary approach which 
interweaves practice and academia. I hope all built environment education programmes 
will adopt this holistic framework to develop capable graduates who can meet this critical 
global challenge.”

Professor Fionn Stevenson, Chair in Sustainable Design, The University of Sheffield School of Architecture

“If humans are going to have a chance of reducing the negative impact of the climate 
and ecological emergency, we will need to work intelligently, effectively, and crucially, 
collectively— sharing knowledge and expertise. Like many people I believe that we have 
no time to lose. With the construction industry pretty much responsible for 45% of all CO2 
emissions, consuming 50% of all mined and harvested raw materials, and creating over 60% 
of UK’s annual waste (that’s 120 million tonnes), we urgently need a well-informed route map 
that will help us steer a path towards a positive future where humans exist in harmony with 
the rest of our host planet. The Climate Framework is exactly what we need.” 

Duncan Baker-Brown, Climate Literacy Champion, School of Architecture and Design, University of Brighton &           
RIBA Council Member

“We have spent 270 years on the carbon-use upslope. We now have a decade or two to 
descend the downslope to the safety of the base camp. The skills, outlook and culture 
required for this entirely different challenge require a revolution in thinking. This initiative 
represents just that.”

Professor Tim Ibell, Professor of Structural Engineering, Associate Dean of the Faculty of Engineering and Design, 
University of Bath

“The Climate Framework provides an excellent, comprehensive overview of the context and 
necessary initiatives to achieve sustainable design. It goes beyond the core concerns of 
energy and carbon to frame these within wider themes ranging from human behaviour 
to the circular economy. This rich and systematic framework will not only inform but also 
inspire design teams to develop creative and effective responses to the climate crisis.”

Professor Koen Steemers, Professor of Sustainable Design, Department of Architecture, University of Cambridge

“Net zero” demands a transformation in the way we design and build.  It depends on us all 
pushing the boundaries of our knowledge and skills, no matter what our career stage. This 
initiative, with input from across our industry, professional bodies and universities, will enable 
exactly that”.

Dr Stephen Allen, Lecturer, Department of Architecture & Civil Engineering, University of Bath

25



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

26

“I am delighted that we have reached this point where both the built environment industry 
and academia have grasped the scale of the challenge and have stepped up to deal with it 
together. The Climate Framework provides a coherent educational pathway for both those 
already in the industry and those teaching the new generations coming into the profession, 
such as LSBU. It is to be applauded.”

Professor Andy Ford, Professor of Systems in the Built Environment, The School of the Built Environment and 
Architecture, London South Bank University

“This framework is a significant step forward to capturing the extent to which the collaborative 
decisions of designers in the built environment can impact the future of our planet. The 
challenges we are facing are complex and cannot be surmounted without the strategic 
alignment and united progress(yes upskilling!) across the professions, education, and industry. 
Willingness to LEARN and SHARE our collective experience will determine our children’s future.” 

Jennifer Boyer, Assistant Head of School, Dublin School of Architecture, TU Dublin

“We are delighted to support the Climate Framework which provides a cross-disciplinary 
holistic approach to grow climate change capability and capacity to a contribute to 
a sustainable global society. It is important that the built environment industry, providers 
and professional bodies collaborate to provide next generation education, training and 
development to ensure that students, graduates and existing professionals are gaining 
the relevant skills both now (and for the future). Sustainability and climate change is hugely 
important to us as custodians of an institution which trains professionals to go out and 
create a better built environment.”  

Aled Williams, Director of Research, Innovation and Partnerships, UCEM & CIC Champion, Education

“As someone who supported the Climate Framework from day one, I am truly excited to see 
it progressing to global visibility with such wide and shared consensus from both industry 
and academia. At a time where everybody talks about upskilling construction workers, very 
few seem to realise the at least equal importance of educating construction thinkers. The 
Climate Framework is a fundamental first step precisely in this direction.”

Dr Francesco Pomponi, Head of REBEL (Resource Efficient Built Environment Lab), Edinburgh Napier University

“Widespread action in 2018/19 saw  most UK Higher education institutions becoming signatories 
to Climate Emergency Declarations as well as the Sustainable Development Goals Accord. 
These actions require these centres of learning to deliver zero carbon in their own activities 
by 2030 and to embed sustainability and climate change agendas throughout their curricula. 
However, action on curriculum has been slow. I therefore wholeheartedly welcome and 
support the launch of the Cross-Industry Action Group for Education’s Climate Framework. 
This initiative will enable schools of the built environment to deliver on their institutions 
commitments and enable their graduates to promote and deliver the change the industry 
so sorely needs.”

Dr Julie Gwilliam, Reader Welsh School of Architecture, Dean of Postgraduate Studies College of Physical Sciences & 
Engineering, Associate Dean for Environmental Sustainability, Cardiff University

26



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

27

“I endorse the Climate Framework initiative and its ambition to provide common ground for 
a holistic, cross-disciplinary action for building a greater capacity around climate change 
and sustainability, embraced collectively by both industry and academia.  Its introduction is 
very timely indeed, as critical and pressing challenges of the current pace of climate change, 
rapid world urbanisation and the need for better pandemic responsiveness require from 
each and every one of us to “up the game” in delivering our built environments in a more 
sustainable way.”

Dr Boris Ceranic, Course Director for MSc Architectural Courses, University of Derby &                                                        

CIAT Center of Excellence Leader

“As design professionals there has never been a greater need to reassess and reimagine our 
relationship with nature for a designed not necessarily only a built environment; The Climate 
Framework provides a much needed holistic knowledge base for further developing our 
collaborative, cross disciplinary and creative design practice for a climate-changed future”.

Dr Sonja Dragojlovic-Oliveira, Programme Leader for B(Eng) Architecture and Environmental Engineering, 
Department of Architecture and the Built Environment Faculty of Environment and Technology, University of 

the West England Bristol

“I wholeheartedly support the Climate Framework Structure proposed by the Cross-industry 
Action Group whereby the industry and the academia will strongly collaborate to develop 
a robust, rich and holistic knowledge base on climate change mitigation and adaptation 
strategies. This is a very timely initiative to further enhance the commitment of the building 
industry to taking informed actions on reducing carbon emissions from the built environment 
and to conserve natural resources.”

Dr Eshrar Latif, Associate Professor, Welsh School of Architecture, Cardiff university

“The design and management of our cities, our buildings, and the social and cultural 
conventions of daily life, significantly impact the long-term health and wellbeing of our planet, 
of humans and all living things.  The Climate Framework makes an important contribution to 
strengthening climate awareness by tying together relevant scientific knowledge from diverse 
disciplines.  It is a powerful platform for ensuring that educators, learners, designers and 
industry understand fully the ways in which their professional actions not only prevent damage 
but positively shape a sustainable environment.”

Alexi Marmot, Professor Facility & Environment Management, UCL

“Embedding sustainability and climate contents in our programmes have been an objective for 
many years. The lack of coordinated effort to build up creditable contents has been an issue 
overdue. The Climate Framework is a well thought-out comprehensive approach for all higher 
education programmes to adopt for their course development.” 

Steve Austin, Head of School, Energy, Construction and Environment, Coventry University

27



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

28

“I am delighted to see this initiative systematising and integrating current and emerging 
knowledges about transitions to zero carbon and fairer built environments. This broad 
climate curriculum framework acknowledges the complexities and interdependencies 
and raises the bar of professional discourses, without shying away from responsibilities.                                   
I also welcome and applaud this initiative for its holistic approach to lifelong learning for 
built environment professionals, which recognises the role that universities and professional 
bodies can and should play in working together to encourage and support such learning.”

Dr Cristina Cerulli, Associate Professor in Community-led Architecture and Urban Design, College of Social Sciences 
and Arts, Sheffield Hallam University

“The Climate Framework provides a holistic knowledge base to motivate current and future 
built environment professionals in learning technical knowledge and effective digital skills, 
exploring critical thinking and innovative solutions to benefit society. It will also set upskilling 
relay—challenge benchmarks to verify and validate the collective impacts from all sectors on 
net zero operational carbon, biodiversity net gain and transformation to a circular economy.”

Dr Tong Yang, Senior Lecturer in Construction, Architecture & BIM, Middlesex University

“There has never been more pressing times for built environment professionals. Meeting 
the needs of our society whilst reducing our environmental impact will demand a paradigm 
shift in the way we commission, design, build and occupy our buildings and cities. We need 
to understand them as parts of a larger system, that needs to be self-sustaining and self-
healing. In order to realise this, education and training will need to equip professionals with 
the skills and competences to rapidly - and confidently - decarbonise the built environment 
and increase its resilience. The Climate Framework proposition is to offer the foundations 
to enable this to happen.”

Prof Lucelia Rodrigues, Chair in Sustainable & Resilient Cities, Department of Architecture & Built Environment, 
University of Nottingham

“The Climate Framework is indeed a timely initiative as the UK and other governments commit 
to net-zero emissions by 2050, endorsed by multiple key stakeholders within the construction 
industry; with academia and research as the backbone for achieving this mission. I am very 
pleased to support the Climate Framework as I am passionate about embedding sustainable 
and low/zero carbon design strategies in teaching, as well as a consistent theme in my 
research. At UEL, we have recently introduced 3 new modules (20 credits at each level of BSc 
(Hons) Architecture) which focus on the integration of environmental design from the outset 
of a project, building students’ ability to reflect on appropriate zero carbon design strategies 
and explore them in a creative and rigorous manner within their design projects. I am confident 
the Climate Framework will effectively develop and sustain the ‘golden thread of knowledge’ 
it aspires to create throughout a practitioner’s journey from a student to a professional -  
genuinely competent in addressing the climate emergency.”

Dr Heba Elsharkawy, Reader in Architecture, Course Leader BSc (Hons) Architecture (ARB/RIBA Part 1), University 
of East London

28



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

29

“The climate crisis challenges every discipline working to develop our built environment and 
requires that we fundamentally reconsider how we build for our future. The Climate Framework 
will ensure that our future built environment professionals are equipped with the knowledge 
and skills needed to build today and ensure we protect our future.”

Dr Ian Hamilton, Associate Professor, UCL Energy Institute, University College London

“The Manchester School of Architecture is delighted to support the Climate Framework, 
particularly the holistic focus it will bring to educating our future graduates to address the 
climate emergency. We welcome the attention paid to climate justice and inclusivity, and we 
are  encouraged by the interaction with climate adaptation and the biodiversity crisis. We look 
forward to incorporating such a valuable tool into our existing academic courses.”   

Dr Angela Connelly, Senior Lecturer and Climate Change Advocate, Manchester School of Architecture

“The contribution of buildings to greenhouse gas emissions in Cape Town is more than the 
global average. The 2018 spectre of ‘day-zero’, when Cape Town would run out of water, 
heralded an existential threat. Cape Town is a highly unequal city in a unique floral kingdom. 
The School of Architecture at the University of Cape Town endeavours to equip students 
with the skillsets to engage with these urgent ecological and social challenges. We value 
and support the Climate Framework in its aim to educate well-rounded built environment 
professionals to play a leading part in interdisciplinary efforts for global sustainability.”

Dr Tom Sanya, Senior Lecturer & Dr Philippa Tumubweinee, Director, School of Architecture, Planning and 
Geomatics, University of Cape Town

“The AED initiative arose due to the significant lack of pedagogical training regarding the 
climate and ecological crisis in architectural education. We therefore welcome and applaud 
this effort made towards the remediation of such a deficit, and believe the framework will hold 
a crucial role in equipping us with the knowledge and skills necessary to make a meaningful 
contribution over these next vital years.”

Architecture Education Declares

“An industry wide climate framework, I believe, would allow us to establish a culture of 
partnership between research, education and practice. Currently these three areas are not 
well-linked, but strengthening and formalising the links is essential if the built environment 
sector is to acquire the capacity to innovate. The latter include the capacity of all related 
professions to develop new working practices, acquire new knowledge and also to make 
architectural projects arenas for shared research and learning. Hitherto the opportunities 
for such collaboration have not been harnessed well and establishing a climate framework 
would be an important step towards achieving that goal.”  

Professor Henrik Schoenefeldt, Professor of Sustainability in Architectural Heritage, School of Architecture, 
University of Kent

29



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

30

“Humankind has been using the natural capital of the Earth at an increasingly alarming 
rate, seemingly unaware of the consequences until recently. With such large increases in 
populations envisaged in this century, societies have to question, for example, the problem 
of production and begin to discover new life styles for living which are less consumptive and 
have much less impact on the natural environment if a viable balance between people and 
the Earth is going to endure. We need to learn lessons from how Nature optimises material 
and energy usage. We can only do this by a holistic and transdisciplinary approach—which 
is embedded in the Climate Framework—so in this way the barriers which too often impede 
the flow of knowledge are dissolved.”

Professor Emeritus Derek Clements-Croome, University of Reading

“Industry and academia should work together collaboratively and urgently on reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from construction and the built environment.”

Dr Alice Moncaster, Senior Lecturer, School of Engineering and Innovation, The Open University

“The Climate Framework offers a compelling methodology for connecting schools to 
professional practice, breaches the void left by a lack of dynamic construction industry 
standards and a curricula shortfall in need of a stronger mandate from the accreditation 
boards, and ensures students and architects can respond effectively and immediately to the 
deepening climate crisis.” 

Dr Harriet Harriss, Dean, Pratt Institute School of Architecture

30



Clim
ate fram

ew
ork

31



Cllr Johnson Situ
Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency, Planning & Transport  

To lead the council’s work on tackling the Climate Emergency, continuing 
to improve the borough’s environment and our contribution to a greener city 
and a greener planet. To work with Cabinet Members across portfolios to 
champion sustainability and continue reducing the borough’s carbon 
emissions. Increase the use of green energy including with South East 
London Combined Heat and Power (SELCHP). 

To deliver strategic growth and development plans for the borough which 
deliver new homes, jobs and infrastructure that benefits local communities. 
To facilitate suitable development in partnership with local residents and 
businesses, particularly in Opportunity Areas. Ensure that planning and 
development delivers not just new homes for local people, but also 
improves access to quality local services for Southwark residents. To lead 
on our consultation and engagement with the community around planning 
and strategic development, ensuring that their views shape every aspect of 
our work.

To lead on transport and travel strategy, including the delivery of strategic 
transport projects necessary for growth and development in the borough 
such as the Bakerloo line extension.

The cabinet member will have particular responsibility for:

 Reducing carbon emissions and promoting climate justice
 Green energy
 Planning policy and performance and building control
 Ensuring development delivers for the whole community, including 

children and young people and black, Asian and minority ethnic 
communities

 Area Action Plans, including Old Kent Road and Canada Water 
(working with the Cabinet Member for Communities & Equalities)   

 Increasing the supply of homes through planning and regeneration 
 (working with the Cabinet Member for Housing)

 Increasing economic growth through planning and regeneration 
(working with the Cabinet Member for Jobs, Culture and Skills)

 Major infrastructure project, including the Bakerloo Line Extension
 Strategic Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 payments
 Transport & travel strategy (working with the Cabinet Member for 

Leisure, Environment & Roads)  
 Public transport
 Relationship with TfL

32
Agenda Item 6



33



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020-21

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Fitzroy Williams Tel: 020 7525 7102

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Julie Timbrell, Scrutiny Team SPARES

External

0

Electronic Copy

Members

Councillors: 

Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Graham Neale
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Margy Newens
Councillor Leanne Werner
Councillor Adele Morris

Coopted member:

Jeremy Leach

Reserves Members

Councillor Richard Leeming
Councillor Vikki Mills
Councillor Sirajul Islam
Councillor Peter Babudu
Councillor Jack Buck

Total: 0

Dated: October 2020

34


	Agenda
	5 Review: Planning and the Environment
	About the Cross-Industry Action Group
	Our Vision + Mission
	Supporting 
Organisations
	Executive Summary
	Introduction
	Context
	The industry + academia are saying...

	The Framework
	Holistic Approach

	The Framework
	Proposed Structure

	Learners’ Journey
	Target Audience
	Tiered Structure

	Consultation
	Consultation Process
	Key Findings / Insights

	Detailed Framework 
Structure
	Resources
	Resource Selection + Categorization

	Resources
	Disclaimer

	Endorsement + Support
	Industry
	Academia


	6 Interview with the Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency, Planning & Transport
	 Distribution List 20/21
	DistributionList_Environment1_2020-21


